
Page 1 of 14 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 1 
TOWN OF APEX 2 

TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION   3 
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 20, 2024 4 

3:30 P.M.  5 

The Apex Town Council met for a work session on Tuesday, February 20, 2024 at 3:30 p.m. at 6 
the Apex Town Hall located at 73 Hunter Street in Apex North Carolina. 7 

This meeting was open to the public.  Members of the public were able to attend this 8 
meeting in-person or watch online via the livestream on the Town’s YouTube Channel: 9 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Tq17QonOp1g 10 

 11 

Elected Body  12 
Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert (presiding)  13 
Mayor Pro-Tempore Ed Gray  14 
Councilmember Terry Mahaffey 15 
Councilmember Audra Killingsworth (arrived late; see note below)   16 
 17 
Absent:  Councilmember Brett Gantt 18 

Councilmember Arno Zegerman  19 
 20 

 21 
Town Staff  22 
Interim Town Manager Shawn Purvis  23 
Assistant Town Manager Demetria John  24 
Assistant Town Manager Marty Stone 25 
Town Attorney Laurie Hohe (attended via teams) 26 
Town Clerk Allen Coleman  27 

All other staff members will be identified appropriately below. 28 

[COMMENCMENT] 29 
 30 
[ADDED - AGENDA ITEM NO. 1 – WAKE COUNTY FARMLAND PRESERVATION 31 
PROGRAM PRESENTATION] 32 
 33 
 Mayor Gilbert said he’s going to wait until Councilmember Killingsworth arrives to 34 
make the meeting official. He suggested to proceed and he introduced Loren Hendrickson, 35 
Wake County Farmland Preservation Coordinator, and Trevor Hyde, Wake County 36 
Cooperative Extension Agent for Local Food Systems, to start their presentation on Wake 37 
County Farmland Preservation Program.  38 
 39 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Tq17QonOp1g


Page 2 of 14 
 

[SLIDE-1] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE-2] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE-3] 5 

 6 



Page 3 of 14 
 

[SLIDE-4] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE-5] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE-6] 5 

 6 



Page 4 of 14 
 

[SLIDE-7] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE-8] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE-9] 5 

 6 



Page 5 of 14 
 

[SLIDE-10] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE-11] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE-12] 5 

 6 



Page 6 of 14 
 

[SLIDE-13] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE-14] 3 

 4 
 5 

Councilmember Mahaffey thanked them for coming said this is great information. 6 
He asked why would someone want to opt into this program and asked if there are any 7 
incentives of the Voluntary Agricultural District (VAD).  8 
 Mr. Hendrickson said public hearings have come up more frequently and it’s 9 
affecting any utility roadway projects which affect the land owners. He said with VAD it gives 10 
the opportunity to know what changes are going on around the land owners. He said it would 11 
also show VAD highlighted on the iMaps map as well. He said it also useful for nuisance 12 
management, to let people know there may noises and smells associated with farms. 13 

Mr. Hyde said there is no cost associated to enroll in the VAD program for land 14 
owners.  15 

Councilmember Mahaffey asked why would someone move from the Voluntary 16 
Agricultural District (VAD) to the Enhanced Voluntary Agricultural District because then the 17 
land owner would have to record a deed restriction.  18 



Page 7 of 14 
 

Mr. Hendrickson said the two big differences are one its entities the farmer to a 1 
higher rate of cost shares. He said if you’re a farmer and worked with Wake County on any 2 
conservation projects, it allows you to receive more money from being in the Enhancement 3 
VAD Program. It also helps with filling out a grant application and cost sharing criteria. He 4 
said being in the Enhancement VAD program will allow you to sell a higher percentage of 5 
non-farm goods and still qualify as a bona fide farm.  6 

Councilmember Mahaffey asked to clarify a sentence that states, “May provide 7 
assessments for utilities provided by city or county be held in abeyance, with or without 8 
interest”.  9 

Mr. Hendrickson said it’s more statutory language, but hints to the protection and 10 
public hearings requirements.  11 

Mayor Pro-Tempore Gray asked what is our definition of a farm. He said is it the 12 
statutory definition of what is North Carolina has. He asked to be a part of VAD, EVAD and the 13 
Conservation District Program, do you have to be an existing farm now. 14 

Mr. Hendrickson said, mostly yes. He said when Wake County Farmland Preservation 15 
assess property the criteria mirror the bona fide farm statute at state level. He said they need 16 
to be in production before enrolling. 17 

Mayor Pro-Tempore Gray asked can three or four partial owners come together that 18 
maintain farm land.  19 

Mr. Hyde said it would depend on the size of the land. He said these have specific 20 
size minimums. He said he will provide information on other options for smaller parcels.   21 
 Mayor Pro-Tempore Gray said he wanted to clarify if this is not for vegetable 22 
production. 23 
 Mr. Hendrickson said anything that meets the state agriculture definition would 24 
apply.  25 
 Mayor Pro-Tempore Gray said what about commercially owned versus family owned 26 
property. 27 
 Mr. Hendrickson said there are no guidelines on ownership. He said almost all of 28 
their VAD parcels are smaller, family farms. 29 
 Mr. Hyde said some municipalities have established their own definition on what 30 
counts as a farm. He said the Town can construct a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 31 
and construct their own rules within town limits and Wake County Farmland Preservation can 32 
help staff create those policies and can bring back at a later date to propose for adoption if 33 
Council chose to go that direction.  34 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked if they had an MOU template already established to 35 
look at ahead of time.  36 
 Mr. Hyde said yes.  37 
 Mayor Gilbert asked if anyone had any other questions. 38 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said he would love to learn more and see how the town 39 
can support the program.   40 
 Mr. Hendrickson said this would be the first MOU they have established with any 41 
municipality.  42 



Page 8 of 14 
 

 1 
 Mayor Gilbert called for a brief recess.  2 
  3 
 Councilmember Killingsworth arrived at 4:16 p.m. 4 
 5 

 Mayor Gilbert called the Work Session to order, and led in a recitation of the Pledge 6 
of Allegiance. 7 

 8 
[AGENDA ITEM NO. 1 – TOWN FACILITY SOLAR STUDY] 9 
 Daniel Edwards, Senior Capital Projects Manager, gave an overview of the Town’s 10 
Facility Solar Feasibility study report.  11 
 12 
[TABLE-1 – TABLE 1- TOWN OF APEX FACILITIES-EXISTING FACILITY INFORMATION] 13 

 14 
[TABLE-1 CONT. – TABLE 1- TOWN OF APEX FACILITIES-EXISTING FACILITY 15 
INFORMATION] 16 

 17 



Page 9 of 14 
 

[TABLE-1 – TOWN OF APEX FACILLITIES – UTILITY INFORMATION] 1 

 2 
[TABLE-1 CONT. – TOWN OF APEX FACILLITIES – UTILITY INFORMATION] 3 

 4 
 Assistant Town Manager Stone said he recommended looking at putting solar at all 5 
the sites, and if it can produce some solar, how much it would cost. He said these tables 6 
would be the breakdown if there were solar at these sites.  7 



Page 10 of 14 
 

 Councilmember Killingworth asked if maintenance cost is a yearly or over the life of 1 
the 25 years.  2 
 Mr. Edwards said he believes it’s 25 years.  3 
 4 
[TABLE-3 – TOWN OF APEX FACILITIES-SITE INVESTIGATION] 5 

 6 
[TABLE-3 CONT. – TOWN OF APEX FACILITIES-SITE INVESTIGATION] 7 

 8 



Page 11 of 14 
 

[TABLE-4 – TOWN OF APEX FACILITIES-STRUCTURAL ANALYSIS] 1 

 2 
[TABLE-4 CONT. – TOWN OF APEX FACILITIES-SITE INVESTIGATION] 3 

 4 
 5 
 6 
 7 
 8 
 9 
 10 
 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 



Page 12 of 14 
 

[TABLE-5 – TOWN OF APEX FACILITIES-SOLAR ANALYSIS] 1 

 2 
[TABLE-6 – TOWN OF APEX FACILITIES-SUMMARY] 3 

 4 
 5 
 6 
 7 
 8 
 9 



Page 13 of 14 
 

[TABLE-7 – TOWN OF APEX FACILITIES-RUNNING ORDER] 1 
 2 

 3 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said in the table there is a flat cost per kilowatt and asked 4 
where it came from. 5 
 Mr. Edwards said it’s a cost based on equipment and labor.  6 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked is it market data, or if they sent off and got 7 
estimates. 8 
 Mr. Edwards said this is market data and typical dollar per watt.  9 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked if the town pursues solar energy, are there federal 10 
programs available to municipalities.   11 
 Interim Town Manager Purvis said staff will look into it and see what programs are 12 
available for the town. He said they know those programs are out there, but they need more 13 
info. 14 
 Mr. Edwards said Don Reeves, the town’s Sustainability Coordinator, is looking into 15 
programs that can help support solar in the town and help them increase their ROI. 16 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said the town’s bill from Duke Energy involves peak 17 
demand, he asked if the batteries on the site to discharge during peak hours to offset the 18 
peak demand from Duke.  19 
 Assistant Town Manager Stone said staff has been working on finding out if the 20 
batteries on site can change. He said he spoke to someone with Duke and was told that they 21 
couldn’t make a solar combined with a battery system work for our system, based on the 22 
economic considerations. He said they would put an RFP to see if somebody is able to make 23 
it work. To reduce the peak, their consideration, it was cheaper to go with battery storage at 24 
certain locations.  He said the town is looking at a 10 megawatt to reduce our peak.  25 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked what direction does staff want Council to go with 26 
this report.  27 



Page 14 of 14 
 

 Assistant Town Manager Stone said the plan is to see what kind of grants are out 1 
there and what’s available. He said then Council would give specific directions to staff on how 2 
to move forward with solar, including specific projects. He said it’s cheaper to do a package 3 
than individual solar panels. He said also staff can break it down into a program and look at 4 
cost wise. He said they can also specify how quickly they want staff to act on certain things 5 
and work with them to create a schedule. 6 
 Councilmember Killingsworth said to go with table 6, look at solar potential, and do 7 
ones rated excellent.  8 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said table 7 as it’s sorted by priority.  9 
 Councilmember Killingsworth said it makes sense to do the ones with a bigger 10 
potential first as a grouping.  11 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said he thinks it makes sense to wait for the lifetime of the 12 
roof to replace it. He said he wants the priority for solar to be at Pleasant Park, since it’s the 13 
newest and supposed to their modern park.  14 
 Interim Town Manager Purvis said they can start with looking at the excellent rated 15 
options. He said staff needs a little bit more time to evaluate the extra cost for the structural 16 
piece. He said they can also see what the CIP looks like.  17 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said it sounds like the idea is to look at the projects over a 18 
three-year period and place in priority order.  19 
 Interim Town Manager Purvis said staff will start working to put a plan together. He 20 
said they will share how it would impact the budget. 21 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said he is excited about seeing the potential programs 22 
the town can use to help them with this. 23 
 Assistant Town Manager Stone said the Municipal Building and Public Safety 6 are 24 
solar ready and he recommends to include those buildings as part of the packaging.  25 
 Councilmember Killingsworth said she would like to see the Senior Center to be 26 
included in the packaging since it’s a newer building.  27 
  28 
 29 
 [ADJOURNMENT] 30 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked everyone and declared the meeting adjourned at 4:43 p.m.   31 
 32 

 33 
Jacques K. Gilbert 34 

Apex, Mayor  35 
 36 

Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 37 
Apex, Town Clerk  38 
 39 
Submitted for approval by Apex Town Clerk Allen Coleman.  40 
 41 
Minutes approved on _______ of ___________, 2024. 42 


